










Town of Surfside 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
November 6, 2014 

 7 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 

Surfside, FL  33154 

1. Opening

A.  Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:04 P.M. 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present: 
Mayor Dietch, Commissioner Karukin, Commissioner Olchyk and Commissioner 
Cohen.   Vice Mayor Tourgeman was absent.  As a point of order Mayor Dietch 
acknowledged former Commissioner Mark Blumstein and asked him to lead us in the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Former Commissioner Blumstein led the Pledge of Allegiance 

2. First Reading Ordinances

A.  Medical Marijuana Ordinance – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner 

AN  ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF  
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA RELATING TO MEDICAL MARIJUANA   
FACILITIES FOR MEDICAL USE ONLY; AMENDING CHAPTER 90  
“ZONING” BY AMENDING  “DEFINITIONS”; SPECIFICALLY    
AMENDING SECTION 90-23 “CONDITIONAL USES”; SECTION 90-41  
“TABLE- REGULATED USES”; CREATING SECTION 90-41.2  
“MEDICAL MARIJUANA FACILITIES”; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING  
SECTION 90-77 “OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS”;    
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR  
SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF  
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN  
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

3A

Page 1



Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

November 6, 2014 
 
  

2 

  
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to remove the item.   The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor Tourgeman 
absent. 

3.    Resolutions and Proclamations  

A. Resolution Approving CGA Work Authorization No. 88 – Michael P. Crotty, 
Town Manager 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”) APPROVING CALVIN-GIORDANO & 
ASSOCIATES, INC. (CGA) WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 88 (CREATE 
ZONING CRITERIA INCLUDING MID-BLOCK WALKWAYS AND 
OPEN SPACE, CGA PROPOSAL NO. 14-7020) IN A TOTAL AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $ 54,998.59 FROM THE GENERAL FUND, 
FY2014/2015 ACCOUNT NO. 001-2000-524-31-10; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Manager Crotty presented the resolution. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk said she is in favor of doing the study but is against 
spending a lot of money in doing so.  She previously had suggested the town find 
other ways which may be less costly and said there will be other studies done, one 
by the Chateau.   Manager Crotty responded and said they looked into reducing 
the costs and asked Town Planner Sarah Sinatra to give more details on cutting 
costs.   Commissioner Karukin spoke in support of CGA doing the project as they 
know the town very well and is not in favor of going out to bid as Commissioner 
Olchyk suggested.   
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve and the motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman absent. 

  
  B.  Tourist Mobile App – Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN  OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH PROSPORT 
ENTERTAINMENT, LLC, D/B/A SHFT MOBILE TECHNOLOGIES 
(“SHFT MOBILE”) AND THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE FOR THE DESIGN 
AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE TOWN’S TOURISM MOBILE 
APPLICATION PLATFORM (“TOURISM MOBILE APP”) 
REAFFIRMING THE RESORT TAX BOARD EXPENDITURE OF 
$10,800.00 FROM THE FY2014/2015 RESORT TAX FUND ACCOUNT 
NO. 102-8000-552-48-10 FOR MAINTENANCE, SERVICING AND 

Page 2



Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

November 6, 2014 
 
  

3 

  
 

LICENSING; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO DO ALL 
THINGS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF  THE 
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Manager Crotty presented the item. 
 
There was some discussion as to whether other vendors were looked into.  Public 
Speaker Barbara Cohen spoke and said the Tourist Board was unanimous in its 
decision.  Mayor Dietch asked the Town Attorney to make sure the town is 
protected in the agreement and has the leverage to approve or disapprove any 
advertisement.  Commissioner Karukin also asked about severability and the 
Town Attorney said we could sever the agreement. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve and the motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen.  All voted in favor with Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman absent. 
 

4.  Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 
A. Town Manager Recruitment Update – Colin Baenziger & Associates 

Mayor Dietch said they have the opportunity for an Interim Town Manager by 
bringing in former Chief of Police John Di Censo.   Mr. Di Censo said he would be 
willing to come for three months on a temporary basis.  Commissioner Olchyk spoke 
very highly of Mr. Di Censo and said this originally was her idea.  However since her 
original suggestion things have changed and feels we should not have to spend 
additional money as there may only be a 2-4 week transition period.   She also stated 
that Police Chief Allen has now hired a new Captain with very high qualifications.  
Mayor Dietch said the transition period may take as long as three months and hiring 
Mr. Di Censo would be cost effective as the agreed salary is $12,000 monthly.  
Commissioner Karukin and Commissioner Cohen were in favor of Mr. Di Censo. 
 
Commissioner Cohen made a motion to approve and the motion received a second 
from Commissioner Karukin.  All voted in favor with Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 
 

B. ERP Resolution – Town Manager Crotty presented the item.  He said they were 
disappointed in the number of bids that came in and that staff is recommending that 
the Commission reject the bids and re-advertise.  Manager Crotty said this will be a 
key action item next year for the new town manager. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to reject the bids and re-advertise.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman absent. 
 

C. Seawall Replacement – Chris Giordano from CGA presented the item.  He presented 
five options with varying prices with the fifth option within the town’s budget.  
Members of the Commission had several questions which Mr. Giordano addressed. 

Page 3



Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

November 6, 2014 

4 

Contacting FIND with the town’s intentions were mentioned.  

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept Option 5, contacting FIND and the 
remaining walls defined as moderate and minor be part of the plan for the next fiscal 
year.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk.  The motion carried 
3-1 with Commissioner Cohen voting in opposition.   Vice Mayor Tourgeman was 
absent. 

D.   94th Street End Project – Town Manager Crotty presented the item. 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the October 31, 2014 memo from 
the Public Works Director with the final resolution agreement brought to the 
November 18, 2014 Commission Meeting.   The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Cohen.  All voted in favor with Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 

E. Town Attorney Linda Miller Evaluation – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to withdraw the item.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman absent. 

Mayor Dietch called Public Speaker Louis Cohen.  Mr. Cohen wanted to thank Town 
Attorney Miller for bringing the seven amendments from the Charter Review Board to 
the ballot as she did a very good job.  Commissioner Karukin thanked Mr. Cohen for 
chairing the committee and all his hard work. 

Town Manager Crotty spoke and said the past few months since he announced his 
resignation have been very challenging and he greatly appreciated the support he has 
gotten from the Commission.  He said the Commission’s action here this evening will 
greatly please his wife. 

4. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2014 

________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 4



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

November 18, 2014 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 
        

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order 
Vice Mayor Eli Tourgeman called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members  
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  Vice 
Mayor Tourgeman, Commissioner Karukin, Commissioner Olchyk and 
Commissioner Cohen.  Mayor Dietch was absent. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Police Captain Julio Yero led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Vice Mayor Eli Tourgeman 
Commissioner Cohen asked for a moment of silence in recognition for our great 
country, its citizens and those who have lost their lives. 
 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Town Manager Crotty asked to withdraw Item 9A Solid Waste Rates and Item 9C 
 Bal Harbour Village Sanitary Sewer Force Main and present at next Commission 
Meeting.  Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
Commissioner Cohen asked to defer Item 9D Request to Increase Lot Coverage 
Percentage.  Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman asked to defer Item 9B Harding Avenue Business District 
Bench Sponsorship.  Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Mayor 
Dietch absent. 
 

F. Community Notes – Vice Mayor Eli Tourgeman 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman announced the upcoming community events which can be 
found on the Town’s website.  He also announced that utility bills can now be paid on 
line. 

 
 
Page 5



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

2 

  
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings  
Vice Mayor Tourgeman read the guidelines. 
 
Town Attorney Linda Miller asked the Town Commission if anyone had ex-parte 
communications with the Applicant or any objector.  All members of the Commission 
said they had no ex-parte communications. 
 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa swore in everyone wishing to speak in favor or against the 
item. 

 
 

A. 801- 88th Street Variance – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner Page 1-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA CONSIDERING THE APPLICATION OF 801-88th STREET TO 
PERMIT A VARIANCE FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 90-54.5 
OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES; TO CONNECT A 
DETACHED GARAGE TO THE HOME TO ALLOW THE EXISTING SINGLE 
FAMILY HOME TO CONVERT THE GARAGE TO ADDITIONAL LIVING 
SPACE; PROVIDING FOR RECOMMENDATION OF APPROVAL; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution. 
Town Planner Sinatra presented the item and said they received a letter of support from 
a neighbor of the variance.  Staff is recommending approval. 
Applicant Ari Sklar gave a visual presentation showing views of the house and the 
proposed changes being planned.   
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman opened the public hearings. 
Terry Cohen spoke in support of the item. 
No one else wishing to speak Vice Mayor Tourgeman closed the public hearings. 
 
Commissioner Karukin asked if this item was in conflict with agenda Item 9D 
regarding lot sizes.  Town Planner Sinatra replied and said the proposed changes to the 
house are in compliance. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch absent. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

3 

  
 

3. Consent Agenda 
 
Pulled Items: 
Commissioner Karukin pulled Item 17 and Item 18 –FEMA and Item J – Cell Phone 
Donation Program. 
Commissioner Olchyk pulled Item 23 – Beach Management Agreement 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the consent agenda minus the pulled 
items.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor 
with Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
A. Minutes – Sandra Novoa, CMC, Town Clerk   

October 14, 2014 Regular Commission Meeting 
B. Budget to Actual Summary as of August 30, 2014 – Donald Nelson, Finance 

Director  
            *C. Town Manager’s Report – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  
            *D. Town Attorney’s Report – Linda Miller, Town Attorney  

 *E.  Projects Progress Report – Calvin, Giordano and Associates, Inc.  
F.  Committee Reports – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  
  
 - September 30, 2014 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
     

G. Expenditure of Forfeiture Funds for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 – David Allen, Chief 
of Police 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2014/2015 
POLICE CONFISCATION FUND EXPENDITURE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$83,300.00 FROM THE FORFEITURE FUND TO SUPPORT CRIME 
PREVENTION INITIATIVES, COMMUNITY-BASED PROGRAMS AND 
LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
Approved on consent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

4 

  
 

H. Mutual Aid Agreement between the Village of Indian Creek Public Safety 
Department and the Town of Surfside Police Department – David Allen, Chief of 
Police  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE VILLAGE OF 
INDIAN CREEK PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
TOWN MANAGER AND CHIEF OF POLICE TO EXECUTE AND 
IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE MUTUAL AID 
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Approved on consent. 
 

I. Mutual Aid Agreement between the City of Miami Beach Police Department and 
the Town of Surfside Police Department- David Allen, Chief of Police  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE VOLUNTARY COOPERATION AND 
OPERATIONAL ASSISTANCE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AND THE CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, 
FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER  AND CHIEF OF 
POLICE TO EXECUTE AND IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Approved on consent. 
 

J. Mutual Aid Agreement between the Village of Miami Shores Police Department 
and the Town of Surfside Police Department – David Allen, Chief of Police  
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AND THE MIAMI SHORES VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER  AND CHIEF OF 
POLICE TO EXECUTE AND IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF THE MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Approved on consent. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

5 

  
 

Pulled Items:   
-Commissioner Karukin pulled Item 17 and Item 18 –FEMA.  Building Official Ross 
Prieto gave an update on the item and said there is a tentative verification date for mid 
February. 
-Commissioner Olchyk pulled Item 23 – Beach Management Agreement.  Town 
Manager Crotty gave an update on the item. 
-Commissioner Karukin pulled Item J – Cell Phone Donation Program.  
Commissioner Karukin gave information on this new program. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the pulled items from the consent 
agenda.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in 
favor with Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
 

4. Ordinances  

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing) 
 

1. An Ordinance Amending Town Code Section 90-52 “Required 
Clearances” and Striking Town Code Section 90-92 “Sight Triangles and 
Clearances” – Joe Damien, Code Compliance Director  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” 
AMENDING CODE SECTION 90-52 “REQUIRED CLEARANCES” 
AND STRIKING CODE SECTION 90-92 “SIGHT TRIANGLES AND 
CLEARANCES”; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion for discussion purposes.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with 
Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
Commissioner Karukin asked if the staff had a recommendation for the 
ordinance.   Town Manager Crotty said staff worked with the 
recommendations of the Commission and this was approved at first reading. 

Vice Mayor Tourgeman opened the public hearings.  No one wishing to speak 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman closed the public hearings.  

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch 
absent. 

Page 9



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

6 

  
 

 

 (Set for approximately __9:00___ p.m.) (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15) 
 

B. First Reading Ordinances 
 

 
1. 10% Windows for Each Story – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING”, AND 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-50 “ARCHITECTURE 
AND ROOF DECKS” TO MODIFY THE CODE TO REQUIRE A 10% 
WINDOWS PER FAÇADE OF A SINGLE FAMILY HOME PER 
STORY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Cohen made a motion for discussion purposes.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor with 
Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
Town Planner Sinatra explained the ordinance and why this ordinance was 
presented.  Commissioner Karukin had some questions and Ms. Sinatra was 
able to address them satisfactorily. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch 
absent.  
 

2. Single Family District Paint Colors – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING”, AND 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-50 “ARCHITECTURE 
AND ROOF DECKS” TO LIMIT THE PERMITTED COLORS IN THE 
H30A AND H30B ZONING DISTRICTS TO THE FOUR LIGHTEST 
COLORS ON A COLOR SWATCH; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 
IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
 

Page 10



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

7 

  
 

Commissioner Karukin was not supportive of the ordinance as it limits a 
homeowner as to paint colors.  Vice Mayor Tourgeman explained there is a 
paint palate which does give options.   Town Planner Sinatra further 
explained the paint palate.  Commissioner Cohen suggested that color 
selection go before the Design and Review Board and not the Town Manager. 

Commissioner Cohen made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk.  Commissioner Karukin made a friendly 
amendment that the Design and Review Board approve the color.  
Commissioner Cohen accepted the friendly amendment and all voted in favor 
with Mayor Dietch absent.  

 
3. Ordinance Amending Section 2-235 “Lobbying” – Sandra Novoa, CMC, 

Town Clerk  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 2-235 
“LOBBYING”; CLARIFYING THE DEFINITION OF A 
LOBBYIST; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 2-235 (2) 
“LOBBYIST REGISTRATION, FEES, RENEWAL AND 
WITHDRAWAL”; REQUIRING ALL LOBBYIST WITHIN THE 
SAME FIRM WHO REPRESENT THE SAME PRINCIPAL TO 
REGISTER, PAY FEE AND FILE EXPENDITURE REPORT; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion for discussion purposes.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with 
Mayor Dietch absent. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman explained the ordinance and why it was being 
presented.   
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Cohen and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch 
absent. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

8 

  
 

  5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 
 

A. A Resolution Strongly Urging the Miami Dade County Historic Preservation 
Board (“Board”) to Grant a Six Month Deferral for Designation of Any and 
All Properties in the Town of Surfside as Historic Structures or Districts – 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE STRONGLY URGING 
THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
(“BOARD”) TO GRANT A SIX MONTH DEFERRAL FOR 
DESIGNATION OF ANY AND ALL PROPERTIES IN THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE AS HISTORIC STRUCTURES OR DISTRICTS; TO ALLOW 
THE TOWN TIME TO PREPARE CRITERIA TO HELP GUIDE 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT INTO THE DESIRED DEVELOPMENT 
PATTERN AND TO ANALYZE AND TO STUDY THE IMPACT TO THE 
TOWN; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion for discussion purposes.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Mayor 
Dietch absent. 
 
Commissioner Karukin said he had asked for a corridor analysis and if six 
months would be enough time to get it done.   Town Planner Sinatra said it was. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman opened the public hearings: 
-Annamarie Kelly Stoppa spoke on the issue and Home Rule and the town’s 
rights and asked the Commission to not approve the ordinance. 
-Steven Norris said he had over 200 signatures to save the seaway buildings and 
asks to not approve the ordinance and said the demolition permit was invalid. 
-Tina Paul said she had send emails to the Commission and no one has 
responded.  She has set up a website and asks residents to go on line and sign the 
petition to stop the demolition. 
-Terry Cohen suggests the town create a Historic Preservation Committee to 
study and preserve some of its buildings and keep its history.  
-Steve Karam said the Seaway Villas in its present condition is unsafe.  He said 
Patricia Cohen and Steven Norris want it to be preserved in its current condition. 
Mr. Karam said that Patricia Cohen is being investigated by the Assistant State 
Attorney and Steven Norris has used the villas to extort monies from the buyers. 
-Faith Doyle spoke about the Seaway Villas and that residents there will be 
voicing their opinion in opposition at the Historic Preservation Board Meeting 
tomorrow evening. 
 
No one else wishing to speak Vice Mayor Tourgeman closed the public hearing. 

Page 12



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

9 

  
 

 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the resolution.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Mayor  
Dietch absent. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman directed Town Planner Sinatra and Town Attorney 
Miller to deliver the resolution to the Historic Preservation Board at their 
meeting tomorrow night.  Members of the Commission were in agreement. 

  
      6.  Good and Welfare    

Vice Mayor Tourgeman opened the meeting to Good and Welfare. 
 
Public Speakers: 
-George Kousoulas spoke about the placement of sand below the mean high/low water 
line. 
-Monica Grandeze was very pleased with holiday decorations.  She also spoke about the 
beach and what Mr. Platt had stated.  She would like to see a permanent Beach 
Committee.   
-Barbara Cohen spoke about the holiday lights along Harding Avenue and said it was 
fabulous. 
-Steven Parker said the entrance to the beach on 95th Street was very well done.  He 
spoke regarding the various sites being looked at for a parking facility and feels the Post 
Office lot is the best option. 
-Jeffery Platt spoke about the beach and the leveling of it and now the white sand has 
been covered with the darker sand.  He also spoke about the debris on the beach.  He also 
said the Grand Beach Hotel served alcohol on the beach as well as setting up their 
lounges and umbrellas beyond their property line and taking space from the general 
public.  He also objects to dogs on the beach and the owners not cited. 
-Lou Cohen asked that the rates for waste disposal be leveled off as they are increasing 
too much.  He also asked what the policy was for trash dumpsters. 
-Larisa Alonso asked the Commission to reconsider the ordinance regarding utility 
storage sheds and to allow for larger sheds. 
-Steven Norris expressed his objection at the referral of the properties between 90-91st 
Streets as “dumps.”  This was stated at a previous Commission Meeting.  He also 
defended the name of Vice Mayor Barbara Cohen of Bal Harbour. 
-Terry Cohen would like more dog stations in the town. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk wanted to acknowledge two members of the community who 
attended the meeting as they wished to speak on recycling and fee structure.  She 
explained the item has been deferred to the next meeting as the Finance Director was 
unable to attend the meeting and he was present it. 
Commissioner Olchyk also said regarding the beach and lounges that they have been 
working on this issue but with little results from the State and County. 
No one else wishing to speak Vice Mayor Tourgeman closed Good and Welfare. 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 
 
  

10 

  
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

A. Solid Waste Rates – Donald Nelson, Finance Director/Joseph Kroll, Public 
Works Director (withdrawn) 

B. Harding Avenue Business District Bench Sponsorship – Duncan Tavares, 
TEDACS Director (deferred) 

C. Bal Harbour Village Sanitary Sewer Force Main – Donald Nelson, Finance 
Director (withdrawn) 

D. Request to Increase Lot Coverage Percentage – Commissioner Barry 
Cohen (deferred) 

E. Possible dates for a rescheduled Joint Meeting of the Town Commission 
and Tourist Board – Duncan Tavares, TEDACS Director  
A tentative date of February 2, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. was scheduled. 

F. Status Update on Beach Related Items – Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  
Manager Crotty gave an update on the item and said they still have not 
received the results of the sand testing.  In October the town signed an 
agreement with Land Science and it took about ten days to negotiate the 
contract.  The samples were taken on October 31st and Lab Science expected 
to receive the results from the testing lab last week.  It was indicated it would 
take about four working days to prepare their analytical review of the test 
results.  As stated we have not received the results and staff is taking an “arms 
length” approach on the issue as to not influence them in any way.  The report 
is expected in the very near future. 
Another issue is the Chateau and what are they going to do with the sand.  
They have a CCCL permit which allows them to place the sand on the beach 
from 94th Street south into Miami Beach.  We have been working with them to 
address this to the satisfaction of the town and its residents and consistent with 
the recommendations of the Sand Committee to place the excavated sand into 
the dunes if it meets the testing protocol.  They have a meeting later this week 
to work out a solution that if any sand is to be placed in Surfside it would be 
in the dunes.  The Chateau is also requesting two proposals one possibly from 
Land Science and one from Terracon to test their materials.  The town is 
working with them and the citizens will have the results of the sand testing 
and what the Chateau will be doing with their sand. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Page 14



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 18, 2014 

11 

G. Donation in the amount of $500 to Ruth K. Broad Carnival Ride – 
Michael P. Crotty, Town Manager  

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Mayor Dietch 
absent. 

Vice Mayor Tourgeman acknowledged Town Manager Crotty and said this 
was his last Commission Meeting.   He said it was a pleasure working with 
him and thanked him for his dedication and service to the town and wished 
him well.   

Commissioner Olchyk said that although they may have had disagreements 
she will always remember Mr. Crotty for his hard work and work ethics and 
especially for treating each member of the Commission as equals.  She wished 
him and his family the best of luck. 

Vice Mayor Tourgeman announced that tomorrow between the hours of 3:15-
4:15 p.m. the residents will have the opportunity to meet the five candidates 
for the Town Manager position.   He urged the community to attend and give 
their input to the Commission. 

10. Adjournment
  The meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m.   

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2014 

________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 15



3B

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Town of Surfside 
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 

Surfside, FL  33154 

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
DECEMBER 2014 

COMMUNITY PROGRAMS / INITIATIVES / ENHANCEMENTS 

1. Bus Service - Multi-jurisdictional Study – Bus Service Improvements and Operational
Efficiencies

Discussions were completed with the Managers of Bal Harbour, Bay Harbor Islands and Sunny Isles 
Beach.  Each municipality expressed its desire to participate in this multi-jurisdictional transportation 
analysis in order to provide a bus transportation system that is more responsive to its residents 
ridership needs by attempting to provide a coordinated schedule and routes; expand designation 
options (Mount Sinai; Aventura Mall, etc.); reduce costs by eliminating overlapping routes and 
number of vehicles; and provide linkages to the Miami-Dade transportation system. 

Miami-Dade CITT agreed to organize the coordination of the three bus circulators (Surfside, Bal 
Harbour and Bay Harbor) to identify a more efficient routing thus reducing the overall operating costs. 
A revised routing plan will be available for local review, ultimately leading to an interlocal agreement.  
The TEDACS Director, Duncan Tavares serves as the Town’s representative.  The Finance Director, 
Donald Nelson attended the CITT Municipal Transportation Workshop on behalf of the Town on July 
24, 2014. 

A follow up meeting between MD CITT, Miami-Dade Transit (MDT), Sunny Isles and Surf-Bal-Bay 
representatives was held on September 17. MDT agreed to review all of the schedules and provide 
recommendations on better coordination.  

After conducting outreach on an update to this process, the following email was received from Gerald 
Bryan (MDT) on November 3: 

“My staff has not yet had the opportunity to analyze the municipal services. We are presently 
in preparation for the MDT November service changes. I envision within the next couple of 
months having the available staff for this effort.” 

The TEDACS Director will continue to monitor the progress on this initiative. 

3C

Page 20



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

 
2.  Citizen Survey 
 
Identified as an item in the “Manager’s Transition: Status Report and Work Plan”, with $5000 
allocated in the approved FY 13/14 budget for this initiative, the TEDACS Director is in the process of 
contacting the following vendors for proposals: 

- Barry University (conducted North Bay Village’s survey) 
- FIU Metropolitan Center (approached by the Town to conduct a survey in 2011) 
- Kerr & Downs (conducted Miami Beach’s survey) 

 
This item will be a discussion item on the January 13, 2015 Commission agenda.  

 
3.  Film Ordinance 
 
The TEDACS Director, Town Attorney’s Office and Code Compliance Director met with Sandy 
Lighterman, Film and Commissioner (Miami-Dade), on August 14, 2014 to discuss a possible 
interlocal agreement with the Town. This is earmarked as a discussion item for the Town Commission 
at the January 13, 2015 meeting.  

4.  Miami-Dade Design (Climate Resiliency, Sustainability and Mitigation) Charrette Group 2  
 
Also identified in the Town Manager’s Transition Plan, an initial meeting was spearheaded by the 
Tropical Audubon Society on June 21, 2014. At that meeting groups were formed according to 
location. Group 2 consisted of attendees from coastal communities including Mayor Dietch and the 
TEDACS Director. A laundry list of items to address was conceived with a commitment from the 
group to conduct a subsequent meeting. On August 26, 2014, members of Group 2 met at the Surfside 
Community Center. The group is committed to create a presentation on achievable initiatives and 
programs that can be used to educate the community. The next meeting was earmarked to be 
scheduled for early October.  
 
The follow up meeting is presently on hold due to the unavailability of participants.  More information 
will be provided to the Town Commission when it becomes available.  
 
DOWNTOWN BUSINESS DISTRICT and TOURISM 
 
5.  Sidewalk Ordinance Implementation 
 
On October 29, 2014, Courtesy Notices were issued to both landlords and restaurateurs providing for a 
15 day period to apply for and begin the approval process for sidewalk cafés.  To date, sidewalk café 
applications have been received from nine restaurateurs.  In the following weeks, Civil Violation 
Notices will be issued to those who have not made application, and require that they cease and desist 
operating on the sidewalk.  Failure to comply with the timelines in said Notices will include civil 
penalties and may result in sidewalk café furnishings and equipment to be removed by the Town. 
 
The initial master plan showing the overall available café space (left after backing-out clear walking 
paths) in front of each storefront has been received from the engineer.  The Building Department is 

Page 21



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

reviewing the submitted master plan and will have a final, approved plan which will then be added to 
the applicant files for their consideration.  The reason being that they will be charged per square foot 
and they must determine how much space they want to pay for.   
 
6.  Parking Structure Feasibility Study 

The report entitled “Parking Solution: The Next Step” was presented to the Commission on April 1, 
2014 and was an agenda item for the April 8 Commission meeting.   
 
At the May meeting, the Commission approved the proposal of Lambert Advisory to assist in the 
process of evaluating the Public Private Partnership (P3) recommendation contained in the April 1, 
2014 report for the Post Office site.  The initial work to be undertaken includes necessary 
economic/market analysis to ultimately determine feasibility of a P3 and identification of strategic 
opportunities to ensure a successful P3.   
 
Due to the heightened interest in development opportunities, the Town has recently been approached 
by multiple parties interested in public private partnership opportunities for the Abbott, Post Office 
and 94th Street Parking lots. The Town’s parking study identifies these three lots as the potential 
locations for a parking structure to address the Town’s parking deficit. The development community 
has expressed much interest in the programs identified in the study and has asked the Town for the 
next steps to proceed with a partnership.  
 
Staff is requesting direction on whether or not to continue pushing forward with the Post Office site or 
issue a request for information (RFI) to receive design concepts from the development community on 
all three identified locations. This method would provide the development community with the 
opportunity to submit design concepts/interest and possible financial options to the Town Commission 
to allow an informed discussion. 
 
Staff believes that this approach will enable options to be more clearly identified and possibly provide 
a quicker parking solution. This will be an agenda item at the December Commission meeting.  
  
7.  Five Year Tourism Strategic Plan  
 
The new Tourist Board Members were provided with the Plan; Resort Tax Ordinance (including the 
recommended changes), FY 13/14 Budget documents etc. The Tourist Board will focus on the FY 
14/15 budget as identified in the Five Year Tourism Strategic Plan over the next couple of months A 
joint meeting of the Town Commission and Tourist Board was scheduled for October 6, to discuss 
revising the Resort Tax Ordinance and to address the Board’s governance, authority and composition.   
 
An official tour of the Grand Beach Hotel Surfside was conducted on August 20, 2014 as part of an 
ongoing effort to forge synergy and a cooperative relationship between the Board and hotel.  The joint 
meeting did not occur due to a lack of availability of participants.  
 
The Town Commission identified February 2, 2015 at 7 pm as possible date for a joint meeting. The 
Tourist Board will discuss their availability at their December 8, 2014 meeting (note date change from 
December 1). (Action Item)  

Page 22



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

 
Holiday Lights: The Tourist Board will discuss at their December 8, 2014 meeting when the tree 
lights should be taken down. Past discussions have centered on keeping the lights on past the 
traditional holiday period (ending on January 5). An email was sent to the Town Commission and 
Tourist Board on November 25, 2014 addressing occasional outages through the Police Dispatch/Dept. 
as a speedier remedy.  
 
Mobile App: Staff are working with the vendor on having the app operational by the first Third 
Thursday event on January 15, 2015.  
  
Sister Cities: This initiative, while approved by the previous Tourist Board, was set for discussion by 
the new Tourist Board at their November 3, 2014 meeting. The focus was on educating the Board on 
this initiative and to determine a path forward. At the November 3, 2014 meeting the Board approved 
moving ahead with the initiative but needs more time and information before providing a 
recommendation to the Town Commission. This initiative will be addressed by the Board over the 
next few months with updates provided to the Commission when available.   
 
Benches: Prior to the downtown streetscape project, sponsorship of downtown benches was explored 
as a means to secure seating in the downtown district. While there was interest from a number of 
businesses at the time, this initiative was put on hold due to the improvement project and the 
committee choice of benches that cost more than the previously discussed sponsorship amount. This 
item is on the December 9, 2014 Town Commission agenda. (Action Item) 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES 
 
8.  95th Street End Project 
  
The 95th Street End Project is 95% complete. All of the concrete work, paver installation and 
landscaping is finished. The shower is installed and operational. The concrete benches, which will be 
located in the circle on the pavers; arrived Thanksgiving week with installation within the first two 
weeks of December. Foot traffic is now open to the public for access to the beach. This project was 
completed on time and $2000.00 under proposed staff budget and approx. $43,000.00 under outside 
contract. 
 
9.  Seawall Project 
 
Per the direction of the Commission, a report was scheduled for the September Commission meeting 
recommending a plan to address seawall deficiencies within available resources.  However, due to the 
length of other agenda items, this item was delayed until the October meeting.  Again, the item was 
deferred from the October meeting and was finally heard at the November 6, 2014 Special 
Commission Meeting.  At this meeting the Commission directed CGA to contract with PAC COMM, 
INC to complete the seawalls listed as “Option 5”.  Option 5 included the following seawalls: 
 
1.      Carlyle Ave and 88th St 
2.      End of 88th St on Isles of Biscaya 
3.      95th St and Bay Drive 

Page 23



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

4.      Froude Ave and 88th St 
5.      Surfside Park 
 
CGA has requested in writing the modification of the FIND Grant to FIND.  CGA will present the 
reduction in scope while requested the full amount (or an increase) be retained for the Town at the 
December 13, 2014 FIND Board Meeting.  After confirmation of the grant funding amount a NTP will 
be issued to Pac Comm, Inc.   
 
10.  Biscaya Drainage  
  
The project began on September 21, 2014. Staff worked diligently with minor delays and completed 
the underground work on November 7, 2014. The roads and properties on the island have been cleaned 
and materials removed. There has been newly inserted curbing on properties that were originally 
damaged. The asphalt was placed on November 25, 2014. The project is now complete! This project 
was a great accomplishment for the utility department as all work was performed in house with a 
savings to the Town of over $100,000.00. Special commendation goes out to both the Utility 
Department (Hector Rodriguez, Harold Lacroix, and Kenny Chaviano) and Public Works staff (Jose 
Nodarse) for their tremendous efforts in working to complete the project. The whole project was 
spearheaded by the Town’s Project Manager Randy Stokes! 
 
11.  Town Hall Improvements 
 
Town Hall 
 
Town Hall roof and chiller system projects have begun. The roof portion of this project was completed 
on November 7. The chiller unit was delivered and installed in October. The chiller unit is secured on 
the roof. The air handlers are on site and are expected to be secured on the roof on December 10. The 
A/C contractor expecting delivery of parts scheduled for December 12.  Completion is expected for 
end of December. Once the roof and A/C system are complete the inside portion of this project will be 
addressed, replacing the ceiling tiles, carpet and painting the walls in the Commission Chambers, 
training room, code compliance office and the Police Chief's office. This project is scheduled for 
completion by the end of January, 2015.  
 
PLANNING, ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 

12.  Historic Preservation 
  
The staff of the Miami-Dade Historic Preservation Board (Board) has identified 9 buildings along the 
west side of Collins Avenue as potentially historic structures. These include 9016, 9024, 9025, 9033, 
9040, 9048, 9054, 9064 and 9340 Collins Avenue. The property owners were notified of the Board’s 
interest in these buildings through a letter each property owner received notifying them that their 
property is now subject to a moratorium on all building permits until the Board held a public hearing 
to determine if the structure would be designated historic. The property owners contacted the Town 
asking for assistance in this matter. At that time, the Town contacted the Board’s staff requesting a 
meeting to discuss the implications of this moratorium and inform them of the Town’s ongoing plans, 
including the parking structure analysis and the discussion of development standards on the block 

Page 24



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

between Collins and Harding. Based on Town staff discussion with the Board’s staff, Town staff 
indicated that it would be appropriate to request a deferral of a decision by the Board. The Board 
meeting was held on June 18, 2014 and Town staff requested a six month deferral to provide for an 
opportunity to work with the Board’s staff. An attorney for one of the affected property owners was 
also present and asked for a three month deferral. The Board granted a three month deferral of the 
decision to designate the properties historic.   
  
The Town coordinated a meeting for residents with Historic Preservation Staff on September 10.  This 
presented an opportunity for Historic Preservation Staff to inform residents of the process and get 
questions answered.  Approximately 50 residents attended. Town Staff attended the September 17, 
2014 Board meeting to request a second deferral. The Board granted a six month deferral of the two 
applications that were being reviewed. Residents of the Seaway Villas Condominium were in 
attendance at this meeting and requested that the Board direct their staff to begin an analysis of their 
building to determine if it is eligible for historic preservation. The Board voted to approve this request. 
Town Staff have asked the Board’s staff to notify the Town of all correspondence occurring between 
the Historic Preservation Office and properties in Town.  
 
The Building Official reports that Miami-Dade County’s Office of Historic Preservation contacted the 
Building Department on July 24, 2014 requesting the review of plans for the following addresses: 
  

·         9300 Collins Ave 
·         9316 Collins Ave 
·         9332 Collins Ave 
·         9348 Collins Ave 
·         9364 Collins Ave 
·         9372 Collins Ave 
·         9380 Collins Ave 
·         9309-9317 Collins Ave  

  
Property owner Bratt Holdings filed building demolition applications on August 1, 2014 for the 
following addresses, 9348 Collins, 9364 Collins and 9372 Collins. Property owner 9300 Collins 
Avenue Investment Group filed a building demolition application on August 8, 2014 for address 9300 
Collins. Miami-Dade County’s Office of Historic Preservation has not issued a moratorium on permits 
for these addresses and as such these applications will now precede any such abeyance on the 
permitting process. On October 7, the Miami-Dade County Commission approved a Historic 
Preservation ordinance on first reading to amend the current provision.  Staff reviewed the County’s 
Historic Preservation amending ordinance sponsored by Commissioner Sally Heyman.  Basically, if 
approved, it would be another tool available to municipalities to decide what direction it wants to 
proceed with historic preservation issues.  Municipalities now under the County’s Historic 
Preservation regulations must remain because they did not opt out in 1982 when that option was 
available.  The amendment would allow municipalities to now opt out and establish their own Historic 
Preservation Boards/regulations. If this amendment is adopted by the County Commission, it does not 
commit the Town to establishing its own Historic Preservation Board as there are many considerations 
prior to undertaking that effort. [Note: The ordinance passed on first reading by a reported 7-5 vote]. 
The ordinance that would allow municipalities to opt-out of the County’s historic preservation 
jurisdiction will be taken up at public hearing before the Cultural Affairs and Recreation Committee 

Page 25



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

on December 17, 2014 at 2p.m.  (Note that this meeting was previously scheduled for December 8, 
2014.) The next Historic Preservation Board hearing will be held the following day, on December 18, 
2014 at 2p.m.   
 
Town Staff attended the November 19, 2014 hearing of the County’s Historic Preservation Board and 
presented a copy of the Town’s Resolution No. 14- 2270 requesting a six month deferral on all Town 
of Surfside properties. The Historic Preservation Board denied the Town's request for a 6 month 
deferral on all properties, however, the Board indicated the Town may ask for additional deferrals at 
their December 18, 2014 public hearing.  
 
Miami-Dade County Commissioner Sally Heyman has sponsored an additional ordinance listed as 
Item 4(D) on the December 2, 2014 Miami-Dade County Agenda which relates to Historic 
Preservation. This ordinance proposes to amend section 16A-10 of the Miami-Dade County Code as it 
pertains to owner-initiated petitions for historic designation. The proposed amendments will require at 
least 75 percent of unit owners in a condominium or cooperative property to join a petition to initiate 
an historical designation proceeding. This “new” ordinance will run concurrently with the proposed 
ordinance heard by the Miami-Dade Commission on October 7 which proposes to amend Section 
16A-3 and 16A-3.1 of the Miami-Dade County Code to allow municipalities the opportunity to enact 
their own historic preservation ordinance at any time and delete limitations on the timeframe for 
municipalities to enact their own historic preservation ordinance. 

13.  Land Development Regulations – Block between Harding and Collins Avenues 

At the September 30, 2013, Joint Planning and Zoning and Town Commission meeting, there was a 
discussion about the block between Collins and Harding Avenues and the high interest in 
redevelopment of this corridor.  In an effort to stay ahead of the new construction, there was interest 
from both boards to prepare criteria to help guide future development into the desired development 
pattern. Based on that, a budget item was included for an analysis and preparation of zoning criteria 
which includes the following:  

               Preparation of new zoning criteria and comparison of existing conditions 
 A review of green book traffic engineering standards as well as Miami-Dade County and 

FDOT as it relates to mid-block accessibility, walkways, pedestrian activity 
 Impacts to existing buildings and strategies for potential non-conformities such as if there 

is a modification to an existing building, under what circumstances would the entire 
development need to be brought up to the proposed code 

 Consistency of new criteria with comprehensive plan, including the 1989 Comprehensive 
Plan, which provided for a study of this corridor 

 Consistency of new criteria with other sections of the zoning code such as off-street 
parking, signs, accessory structures, conditional uses, landscaping 

 Requirements for open space in terms of landscaping, public space 
 Coordination with legal in terms of vested rights, reduced density or intensity resulting 

from new zoning criteria 
 Design criteria for pedestrian walkways 

  

Page 26



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

At the June, 2014 Planning and Zoning meeting, the Board voted unanimously to establish this as a 
top priority. This project was funded in the FY 14/15 budget and the project will be underway 
immediately following the execution of the work authorization with CGA. The work authorization was 
approved on November 6, 2014. Work will commence immediately. The Town Planner has 
coordinated a “kick-off” meeting.  

14.  Ten Year Water Supply Plan 

The Town is required to update its Ten Year Water Supply Plan including identifying any alternate 
water supply sources and analyzing/updating data from our current supplier.  Funds for this project 
have been included in the FY 14/15 Budget.  Work Authorization No. 89 – Ten Year Water Supply 
Plan has been executed with CGA in the amount of $7,466.92. This will be scheduled for the January, 
2015 Commission meeting for first reading.  

TOWN DEPARTMENTS 
 
Town Attorney 
  
15. November 4, 2014 Special Election - Seven Ballot Questions for the Town Charter 

The Town of Surfside received the Official “Certificate of County Canvassing Board Miami-Dade 
County” for the November 4, 2014 Special Election. Town residents approved the following 
questions: “Vacancies on Commission”; “Vacancy in Candidacy”; “Canvassing Board”; “Qualifying 
for Elected Office”; and “Runoff Election.” Ballot Questions “Qualification for Office” and 
“Establishing Elected Official’s Staggered Terms and Increasing Town Commissioner’s Terms from 
Two to Four Years” were not approved.  A resolution is prepared for the December 9, 2014 Town 
Commission Meeting.  

 
Building Department 

16.  FEMA National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) 

The follow-up visit date is pending and has not been determined. 

17.  Community Rating System (CRS) 

The community verification visit has been tentatively scheduled for mid-February 2015. 

18.  Forty Year Building Certification for Collins, Harding, Abbott Avenues and Surfside Blvd. 

The 40 Year Building Certification Program is progressing as follows: 

Reported certifications:  122 in present case file 
Completed certifications:  43 
Time extensions granted:  1 
Exempt from Certification:  3 
Vacant commercial properties:  11 

Page 27



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

Sent to Code Enforcement for non-compliance:  9 
150 day repair order:  1 
On hold:  4 
Inspections: 4   
 
19.  Development Projects 

The Chateau:  The Chateau is progressing with their garage by completing the first series of its major 
concrete pour operations and is out of the ground. 

The Surf Club:  The sky-mat, its major structural element consisting of 1200 plus cubic yards of 
concrete, is scheduled to be poured in early December. The east project is approaching the third floor 
level. 

The Marriott:  The Marriott continues to conduct the majority of its operations from on-site with 
limited lane closures on Collins and Harding. The east building roof level is in progress.  

20.  Sight Triangle (Hedges) and Corner Visibility 
 
On November 18, 2014, the Town Commission adopted, on second reading, an Ordinance amending 
the corner visibility provisions (hedges and sight triangles). An update will be provided at the January, 
2015 Commission meeting. 
 
21.  Beach Management Agreement 
 
Progress on a Town/Miami-Dade County Beach Management Agreement is dependent upon the 
County receiving specific authorization from FDEP permitting the County to assign certain 
management responsibilities to local municipalities.  The County sent a letter to FDEP on March 17, 
2014 requesting a determination that the County can assign maintenance/regulations to local 
governments. The County once again has received a denial from the State to move forward with this 
request. At this time the County is not able to move forward on a staff level with any type of 
agreement.  This has been an unsuccessful effort to this point despite Staff’s efforts over the past 
couple of years.  This has been identified as a priority for the new Town Manager on the Transition 
Plan.    
 
22. Tennis Programing 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department will present options for operations including court rentals.  The 
proposed budget did not include the funding request for the recreational software for the tennis 
facility.  Due to budget constraints and the cost of the requested recreation software, other options will 
be explored. The Parks and Recreation Department will work with the Parks and Recreation 
Committee to review tennis court rentals and reservations. The Parks and Recreation Committee along 
with staff will look into the expansion of the tennis programing to include court fees. This will be 
completed in December and any changes in the operations will begin after the New Year.      
 

Page 28



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

23. Silver Sneakers Program    
 
Silver Sneakers is the leading fitness program designed specifically for active older adults. It is 
delivered through a nationwide network of participating fitness locations such as wellness centers, 
gyms and other facilities. Healthways has been providing innovative health benefits for older adults 
for more than two decades. Today more than 65 Medicare health plans offer the program as a benefit 
to members across the nation. Regular participation in the program has been proven to help older 
adults manage their health and increase strength, balance and endurance. At the request of the Vice 
Mayor the Parks and Recreation Department has completed an application to host this National 
Program. We have listed the Surfside Community Center as the host site. Updates will follow.       
 
24. Tennis Court Shade  
 
Requests have been made for shade structures to be installed at the newly renovated Tennis Center. 
Any type of structure would have to be a permeant structure and Staff is looking into the cost and 
feasibility of this item. Update on this will be provided in the January, 2015 report.    
 
25. 96th Street Park Renovation 
 
The number two item on the Parks and Recreation 5 Year Capital Plan, approved by the Town 
Commission, was the renovation of the 96th Street Park. This item has now moved to the forefront of 
the 5 year Capital Plan. This was brought before the Town Commission during the October meeting. 
The Community Center Second Floor Expansion Committee requested and approved a 2 year hold on 
the second floor project. The recommendation was to consider moving forward with the 96th Street 
Park renovation. This item will be an agenda item for the Parks and Recreation Committee in 
December. A recommendation from the Parks and Recreation Committee will be brought to the Town 
Commission in January, 2015.         
 
Police Department 
 
26.  Upcoming events 
 
Mobile DMV - SPD will host a Mobile Department of Motor Vehicles for residents to renew their 
driver’s license in the training room December 18, from 9:30 am – 2:30 pm. Contact Dina Goldstein 
for further information. 
 
Annual Toy Drive and Holiday Party - SPD is collecting new and unwrapped toys for its annual toy 
drive from now until December 19. The Holiday Giveaway Party for the children is on December 19 
at 3:00 pm in the Commission Chambers. Contact Dina Goldstein for further information or to donate 
toys.   
 
Hanukah Events - The Shul Hanukah party is December 16 from 5:30 pm – 7:30 pm in the Town 
Hall lot. Lt. Williams will coordinate and staff the event. The Shul Hanukah Parade is December 21 at 
3:00 pm. Sgt. Alberto will coordinate the event and staff with officers from SPD and Bal Harbour and 
Bay Harbor Islands PDs. 
 

Page 29



Town Manager’s Report 
December 2014 

 
 

 

Town Clerk 

27.  2015 Agenda and Town Commission Meeting Schedule 

 

 
Human Resources 
 
28.  Request for Commission Action on Personnel Salaries 
 
Michael Crotty, former Town Manager wrote in his November 2014 Town Manager’s Report: 
 

During the first budget hearing on September 9, the Commission passed a motion “to approve a millage 
rate of 5.0293 with the provision that the cuts would include eliminating salary increases in October for 
department heads, part of the step two process.  It would also include eliminating a two percent increase in 
salary for the Finance Director who was not listed on the document.”  The minutes show that the 
Commission approved this millage rate to avoid a substantially-reduced millage at the majority vote rate 
(4.6201 mills), which would have required an additional reduction of approximately $500,000 in the FY 
14/15 budget.  However, this action has caused significant uncertainty and concern among our employees at 
all levels.  In a previous memo to the Commission, I outlined the concerns and recommended Commission 
action: 

 
1.  Merit increase for Finance Director.  The Town Manager is solely responsible for personnel 
actions, including the evaluation of employees to determine whether merit increases are warranted. 
Since the Commission’s action is contrary to this principle, I recommend that the Commission leave 
this matter to the Town Manager’s discretion and rescind this merit-increase prohibition. 
 
2.  Funding for step-two salary adjustments designed to address salary disparities for five 
Department Heads.  At the 12/10/13 regular Commission meeting, the Commission discussed 
disparities in Department Head salaries.  “The Town Commission agreed that this issue is totally under 
the Town Manager’s purview and to take necessary actions to assure fairness in the salaries of 
Department Heads.”  Following this direction and consistent with the Commission-approved Wage 
Study, I initiated a two-step plan to increase Department Head salaries in January and September 2014.  

Agenda Deadline ‐ All Agenda

Deadline ‐ Items To Completed Items To Distribution Commission Meeting

MONTH Town Attorney Town Clerk Date Date

January 2015 12/19/2014 1/2/2015 1/7/2015 1/13/2015

February 2015 1/16/2015 1/30/2015 2/4/2015 2/10/2015

March 2015 2/13/2015 2/27/2015 3/6/2015 3/10/2015

April 2015 3/20/2015 4/3/2015 4/8/2015 4/14/2015
May 2015 4/17/2015 5/1/2015 5/6/2015 5/12/2015

June 2015 5/17/2015 6/1/2015 6/3/2015 6/9/2015

July 2015 6/19/2015 7/3/2015 7/8/2015 7/14/2015

August 2015 7/17/2015 7/31/2015 8/5/2015 8/11/2015

September 2015 8/14/2015 8/28/2015 9/2/2015 9/8/2015
October 2015 9/18/2015 10/2/2015 10/7/2015 10/13/2015

November 2015 10/16/2015 10/30/2015 11/4/2015 11/10/2015

December 2015 11/13/2015 11/27/2015 12/2/2015 12/8/2015

January 2016 12/18/2015 1/1/2016 1/6/2016 1/12/2016

Page 30



Page 31



3D

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
PROJECTS PROGRESS REPORT 

CALVIN, GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
December, 2014 

1. Planning and Community Development – The Miami-Dade Historic Preservation Board
notified property owners along Collins Avenue that its staff have identified properties with
potential historic significance. The Board instituted a moratorium on building permits until
the Board could have a hearing and determine if the structures would be deemed historic. If a
designation is instituted, then the property owners will have limited options for their
properties. Furthermore, the County staff was not aware of any of the projects the Town is
exploring, such as new zoning criteria for the block between Collins and Harding Avenues or
the potential for a parking structure. Town planning staff attended the Historic Board meeting
on June 18, 2014 to request a six month deferral of a decision by the Board so that the Town
could work with County staff. The Board granted a three month deferral. Planning staff
attended the September 17, 2014 Historic Preservation Board meeting to request an
additional six month deferral to continue coordinating efforts with the County Staff, which
was granted by the Board. Town Staff attended the November 19, 2014 meeting of the
County’s Historic Preservation Board and  presented a copy of the Town’s Resolution No.
14- 2270  requesting a six month deferral on all Town of Surfside properties. The Historic
Preservation Board denied the Town's request for a 6 month deferral on all properties,
however, the Board indicated the Town may ask for additional deferrals at their December
Board meeting. The Seaway Villas and 9340 Collins Avenue are scheduled for the Historic
Board’s December 18, 2014 designation public hearing. Planning staff have commenced an
analysis on the zoning criteria for the block between Collins Avenue and Harding Avenue in
November. A discussion will occur with the Planning and Zoning board in January.  A
resident requested that the Town consider increasing lot coverage to 50% from 40% of a lot.
Staff has prepared an analysis for discussion at Planning and Zoning and Town Commission.
An ordinance addressing this request will be on an upcoming Commission meeting. Staff
continues to answer approximately 85-100 zoning questions monthly and reviews permit
applications.

2. Information Technology & TV Broadcasts - IT is waiting on Public Works to add a
network cable in the gas pump area so the pump can be converted to digital. A Microsoft
SQL Server license was ordered for the Badger meter reading software. IT is still awaiting
approval to proceed with an upgrade to Microsoft Office 2013. The Town was upgraded to a
50MB Metro Ethernet connection for internet service and cancellation of the previous T1
circuit has been requested through AT&T. The SCALA system has been updated every week
with the new meetings and Town schedule per town manager’s request. The Barracuda web
filtering device has arrived and will be installed by 12/31.

3E

Page 36



Page 2 
Town of Surfside 

Projects Progress Report 

 
3. Public Utilities / Engineering – Public Utilities / Engineering – The 1 year warranty video 

of the sanitary sewer mains has commenced and is 100% complete.  The engineers have 
reviewed 72 the main line sewer runs and have accepted 30 of them.  The unaccepted sewer 
mains will require the line be cleaned and re-televised or require minor repairs that will be 
completed by the Contractor at no cost to the Town. 
 
Funding Summary –                                                                                            

Funding Status:                                                    Amount               Amount Received             

FDEP Grant                                                           $873,500                     $873,500     

FDEP Grant                                                           $125,000                     $125,000  

FDEP Grant                                                           $100,000                     $100,000               

FDEP State Revolving Fund Loan                        $9,312,881                  $7,339,928 *          

BBC Bond                                                             $859,000                     $859,000     

TOTAL                                                                 $11,270,381                $9,225,928 

 

*Request # 3 has been submitted for the full $9,312,881.  The final report has been 
submitted to the state. 
 

4. Town-Owned Seawall Repair – This item was presented at the November 6, 2014 Special 
Commission Meeting and received direction to proceed with Option 5 (total of 5 walls) for 
the budgeted amount of $1,100,000.00.  CGA has submitted the revised plan to FIND.  The 
revised package requests the full grant amount of $1.1M (50% match) with the reduced 
scope.  After obtaining written approval from FIND, which is scheduled for December 13, 
2014, CGA will issue a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor (PAC COMM INC). 

 

5. Biscaya Island Drainage Project – This project is completed with the exception the 
installation of the final tide flex valve at the bridge side of the project.  Clean up and 
landscaping restoration will be completed in December 2014.. 

 

Page 37



3F

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



3G

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



3H

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



1 

Town of Surfside 
Commission Communication  

Agenda # 

Agenda Date:  December 9, 2014 

Subject:   10% windows for each story  

From:  Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

Background: The Town’s zoning code provides a requirement for 10% 
windows per façade of a single family home. This requirement is per 
elevation, not per story. The Planning and Zoning Board has requested a 
modification to implement this modification per story rather than per elevation 
only.  

Analysis: 

Sec. 90-50. Architecture and roof decks. 

9-50.1 Architecture.  

(1)  The architectural design of proposed main buildings shall create a 
unique elevation compared to the main buildings of the adjacent two homes 
on each side of the subject property on the same side of street. If the 
adjacent lot is vacant then the next adjacent lot shall be utilized. A unique 
elevation shall be created through the modulation of at least three of the 
following architectural features:  

a. Length, width and massing of the structure;
b. Number of stories;
c. Facade materials;
d. Porches and other similar articulation of the front facade;
e. Number and location of doors and windows; and
f. Roof style and pitch.

(2) All elevations for new structures and multi-story additions (additions 
greater than 15 feet in height) shall provide for a minimum of ten-percent wall 

4A1

Page 65



2 

openings including windows, doors or transitional spaces defined by 
porches, porticoes or colonnades. per story. 

Budget Impact: N/A  

Growth Impact: N/A    

Staff Impact: N/A 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the Town Commission approve 
this ordinance on second reading.  

______________________                       _____________________ 
Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner      John DiCenso, Interim Town Manager      

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



1 

Town of Surfside 
Commission Communication  

Agenda Date:  December 9, 2014 

Subject:   Single Family District Paint Colors    

From:  Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

Background: At the November 21, 2013 Planning and Zoning Board 
meeting, there was a discussion regarding modification to the code relating 
to paint color requirements in the single family district. The Board further 
discussed this topic at their April 28, 2014 meeting.  

Analysis: There are currently no requirements relating to paint color 
restrictions in the code. The board directed staff to limit the permitted colors 
for a single family residence to the four lightest colors on a color swatch. If 
approved, the Building Department will maintain a color swatch in Town Hall. 
Applicants may present colors, of whatever manufacturer of their choosing, 
and match them to the color swatch in the Building Department. The Building 
Department staff will match up the proposed color with the color swatch and 
keep a copy of the color swatch on file. If there is a case of uncertainty, the 
Town Manager or his designee will determine if the color is permitted.  

The following language is suggested: 

Sec. 90-50. Architecture and roof decks. 

9-50.1 Architecture. 

(8) Paint colors. Structures in the H30A and H30B zoning districts shall be 
permitted to be painted the four lightest colors for the structure’s primary 
color on the color swatch on file in the Building Department. All other colors 
may be accent colors. A paint permit shall be submitted to the Building 
Department and the approved paint swatch shall be kept on file with the 
permit. The Design Review Board shall make a determination in cases of 
uncertainty. 

4A2

Page 70



2 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the Town Commission approve 
this ordinance on second reading.  

Budget Impact: N/A  

Growth Impact: N/A   

Staff Impact: N/A 

______________________                      __________________________ 
Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner     John DiCenso, Interim Town Manager        

Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



4A3

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



9A

Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



9B

Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



9C

Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



1 

Town of Surfside 
Commission Communication  

Agenda # 

Agenda Date:  December 9, 2014 

Subject:   Increasing Lot Coverage 

From:  Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

Background: Charlie Ness, a town resident, requested an addition at their existing 
single family home. The Town code limits lot coverage to 40% and Mr. Ness 
requested to exceed the lot coverage limits. Lot coverage is defined as the 
percentage of the total area of a lot that, when viewed from above, would be 
covered by all principal and accessory buildings and structures, or portions thereof; 
provided however that allowable exclusions, as described under "floor area," shall 
not be included in determining the building area.   

The exclusions to lot coverage mean that they will not count towards the 40% 
maximum. The exclusions are as follows:  

a. Basement space when used for parking of vehicles, as provided in the

design standards for underground parking in this Code.

b. Accessory water tanks or cooling towers.

c. Uncovered steps and exterior balconies.

d. Interior balconies. The width of an interior balcony shall not be greater than

the depth. 

e. Covered or uncovered terraces, patios, breezeways, or porches which are

open on two (2) sides. 

It should be noted that although the exclusions above do not count towards the 

maximum 40% lot coverage, they will count towards a property’s maximum 

impervious area, which is 65%. Meaning, that 35% of a lot must remain “green.” 

Mr. Ness spoke at the September 9, 2014 Town Commission meeting under the 
Good and Welfare portion of the agenda and asked the Town Commission to 
change the code to increase lot coverage of single family homes from 40% to 
47.5% to enable him to build his addition. The Commission directed Staff to place 
this request on the Planning and Zoning Board’s agenda for discussion.  

9D

Page 166



2 

 

 
This was reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Board at the September 30, 2014 
meeting. The board directed staff to return with language that accommodated this 
request, but provided parameters and graphics to explain the code provision.  
 
At the October 14, 2014 Town Commission meeting, the Commission directed staff 
to consider the option of prohibiting an expansion of the second story if a 
homeowner takes advantage of a maximum lot coverage of 50% on the first story.  
 
Analysis: The existing zoning ordinance provides additional setback requirements 
for 2nd story structures, instituted additional regulations for the second floor. If the 
desire is to increase the lot coverage by 50% on the 1st floor, then staff suggests not 
permitting the second floor to exceed the current maximums with lot coverage of 
40% on the first floor, and no more than 80% on the second floor. For example, on 
a typical 5,600 square foot lot, the existing maximum floor area of the first floor 
would be 2,240 square feet. The second floor could be 1,792 square feet, for a total 
of 4,032 square feet. The square footage is approximately 72% of the lot.  
 
To maintain the intent of the original ordinance which limits large homes from 
overpowering the lot, the code could state that 50% lot coverage is permitted, 
however all floor areas of principle and accessory buildings and structures or 
portions thereof; except allowable exclusions, as described under "floor area,"  shall 
not exceed 72% of the net acreage of the lot.  
 
This provision would also only be permitted on the lots within the H30B zoning 
district and for lots that do not exceed 60 feet in width. The H30B lots are the 
interior lots which are typically smaller and more constrained that the lots within the 
H30A zoning district. The Planning and Zoning Board wanted to provide this relief 
only to the most constrained lots.  
 
Below is the proposed code language:  

Sec. 90-49. - Lot standards. 

Lot standards H30A H30B H30C H40 H120 SD-B40 MU CF 

Minimum lot width 50 FT 50 FT 50 FT 50 FT 50 FT 0 Ft - - 

Minimum lot area 8,000 FT 5,600 FT - - - - - - 

Maximum lot coverage 40% 40% - - - - - - 

Minimum pervious area 35% 35% 20% 20% 20% - - - 

  

 

 

Page 167



3 

Sec. 90-49.1.1 Modification of Lot Coverage  

A maximum of 50% lot coverage is permitted for properties in the H30B zoning 
district with the following conditions:  

a.  All floor areas of principle and accessory buildings and structures or
portions thereof, except allowable exclusions, as described under "floor 
area,” shall not exceed 72% of the net acreage of the lot.  

b. Lots eligible for 50% lot coverage shall be no more than 60 feet in width
measured at the intersection of the right of way and the property line.

Budget Impact: N/A   

Growth Impact: N/A    

Staff Impact: N/A 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the Town Commission discuss and 
provide direction to Staff on the preparation of an ordinance.   

______________________                     ___________________________ 
Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner    John DiCenso, Interim Town Manager      

Page 168



9E

Page 169



Attachment

Page 170



Page 171



9F

Page 172



9H

Page 173


	3A - Minutes
	3B - Budget to Actual
	3C - town Manager's Report
	3D- Town Attorney Report
	3E - Projects Progress Report
	3F - Committee Reports
	3G - Bus Shelter
	3H - Certification of Charter Amendments Election Results
	4A1 - 10 % Windows for Each Story
	4A2 - Single Family District Paint Colors
	4A3 - Ordinance Amending Section 2-235 "Lobbying" 
	9A - Solid Waste Commercial Rates
	9B - Harding Avenue Business District Bench Sponsorship
	9C - Bal Harbour Village Sanitary Sewer Force Main
	9D - Lot Coverage
	9E - Employee Morale
	9F - Parking Solution
	9H - Traffic Signal Proposal - 91 Street and Collins Avenue



